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Olejarz, Barbara

From: Carannante, Vincenzo <VCarannante@goodwin.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2017 11:25 AM
To: Lazarus, Steven; Carney, Brian
Cc: Durdy, Barbara (Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org); Tarr, Adam 

(Adam.Tarr@hhchealth.org); Olejarz, Barbara; Riggott, Kaila
Subject: RE: CON Application Submission/Filing for Backus Hospital - Termination of Laboratory 

Services
Attachments: Backus-Lab term3.pdf

I apologize for the confusion Steven.  I wanted to send you the old and new one just in case you needed both.  It looks 
like I did not include the new one in my email to you.  It’s attached.   
Thanks, 
Vin  
 

Shipman & Goodwin LLP 
C O U N S E L O R S  A T  L A W  
 

 

Vincenzo Carannante
Partner 
One Constitution Plaza 
Hartford, CT 06103-1919 

 

Tel (860) 251-5096 
Fax (860) 251-5211 
vcarannante@goodwin.com 
www.shipmangoodwin.com 

 

 

Privileged and confidential. If received in error, please notify me by e-mail and delete the message.  

 please consider the environment before printing this message  
 

From: Lazarus, Steven [mailto:Steven.Lazarus@ct.gov]  
Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2017 11:21 AM 
To: Carannante, Vincenzo; Carney, Brian 
Cc: Durdy, Barbara (Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org); Tarr, Adam (Adam.Tarr@hhchealth.org); Olejarz, Barbara; Riggott, 
Kaila 
Subject: RE: CON Application Submission/Filing for Backus Hospital - Termination of Laboratory Services 
 
Hi Vin, 
 
The ones you sent seem to be the old notices, can you provide us with the new updated newspaper notices. Also, did 
you send in an updated cover letter for the new CON. Forgive me if I missed something, as I am going off the 
attachments to this email, not to anything you may have filed officially through OHCA@CT.GOV. I don’t have direct 
access to that inbox. 
 
Thanks,  
 
Steven 
 

Steven W. Lazarus 
Associate Health Care Analyst 
Division of Office of Health Care Access 
Connecticut Department of Public Health 
410 Capitol Avenue 
Hartford, CT 06134 
Phone: 860‐418‐7012 
Fax:        860‐418‐7053 
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From: Carannante, Vincenzo [mailto:VCarannante@goodwin.com]  
Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2017 10:56 AM 
To: Lazarus, Steven <Steven.Lazarus@ct.gov>; Carney, Brian <Brian.Carney@ct.gov> 
Cc: Durdy, Barbara (Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org) <Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org>; Tarr, Adam 
(Adam.Tarr@hhchealth.org) <Adam.Tarr@hhchealth.org> 
Subject: FW: CON Application Submission/Filing for Backus Hospital ‐ Termination of Laboratory Services 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Steven and Brian:  Please see attached for the Backus Hospital CON application we just re‐filed a few minutes ago.  As 
discussed and requested, we re‐ran the newspaper notices with the correct addresses and the only change we made to 
the application we filed on May 22 was to replace the newspaper/notification sheets.  Everything else is exactly the 
same.  We would really appreciate the completeness questions as soon as possible as we need to close this deal by 
September 30, 2017.   
 
Thank you, 
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
 

From: Carannante, Vincenzo  
Sent: Thursday, June 22, 2017 10:49 AM 
To: 'OHCA@ct.gov' 
Subject: FW: CON Application Submission/Filing for Backus Hospital - Termination of Laboratory Services 
 
Hello:  Attached please find the CON application for Backus Hospital.  We delivered the $500.00 filing fee for this 
application on May 22.   
 
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

From: Carney, Brian
Sent: Friday, July 07, 2017 1:47 PM
To: 'Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org'; VCarannante@goodwin.com
Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Rival, Jessica; Olejarz, Barbara
Subject: Completeness letter for Docket 17-32173-CON
Attachments: CON 17-32173 Completeness Letter  Final.docx; CON 17-32173 Completeness Letter  

Final.pdf

Good afternoon Barbara, 
  
Please see the attached completeness letter in the above referenced matter. Please confirm receipt of this email and 
provide your written responses to OHCA no later than September 5, 2017, 4:30 pm. 
  
Sincerely, 
Brian A. Carney 
 
 
Brian Carney, MBA 
Associate Research Analyst 
Connecticut Department of Public Health 
Office of Health Care Access 
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA 
Hartford, CT 06134‐0308 
Phone ‐ 860‐418‐7014 
brian.carney@ct.gov 
 

 
 



Office of Health Care Access 

 
  

Phone: (860) 418-7001 Fax: (860) 418-7053
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA

Hartford, Connecticut  06134-0308
www.ct.gov/dph

Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer

Via Email Only
July 7, 2017

Ms. Barbara A. Durdy
Director of Strategic Planning
181 Patricia M. Genova Blvd.
Newington, CT 06111
Barbara.durdy@hhchealth.org

RE: Certificate of Need Application: Docket Number: 17- 32173-CON
Termination of PSC services
Certificate of Need Completeness Letter

Dear Ms. Durdy:

On June 22, 2017, OHCA received the Certificate of Need application from The William W. 
Backus Hospital (“Applicant” or “Hospital”) seeking authorization to terminate services at seven 
(7) Patient Service Centers; 111 Salem Turnpike, Norwich, CT; 330 Washington St. Norwich, 
CT; 582 Norwich Rd. Plainfield, CT; 163 Broadway, Colchester, CT; 80 Norwich New London 
Turnpike, Uncasville, CT; and 70 Main St. Jewett City, CT. OHCA requests additional 
information pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes §19a-639a(c). Please “reply all” to
electronically confirm receipt of this email as soon as you receive it. Provide responses to the 
questions below in both a Word document and PDF format as an attachment to a responding 
email. Please email your responses to both of the following email addresses: OHCA@ct.gov
and Kaila.Riggott@ct.gov.

Paginate and date your response (i.e., each page in its entirety). Repeat each OHCA question 
before providing your response. Information filed after the initial CON application submission 
(e.g., completeness response letter, prefiled testimony, late file submissions, etc.) must be 
numbered sequentially from the Applicant’s preceding document. Begin your submission using 
Page 92 and reference “Docket Number: 17-32173-CON.”



The William W. Backus Hospital Page 2 of 3
Docket Number: 17-32173-CON
 

 

Pursuant to Section 19a-639a(c) of the Connecticut General Statutes, you must submit your 
response to this request for additional information no later than sixty days after the date this 
request was transmitted. Therefore, please provide your written responses to OHCA no later than
September 5, 2017, 4:30 p.m., otherwise your application will be automatically considered 
withdrawn.

1) Page 15 of the application refers to the development of an asset purchase agreement 
between the Hospital and Quest. Please submit a copy or a draft copy of this agreement. 
Describe any potential barriers to the finalization of this agreement.

2) If the proposal is approved, when approximately do you anticipate the transfer to Quest to 
occur?

3) What is the asset purchase price for the seven (7) PSCs?

4) Page 14 of the application notes that if the Hospital and Quest do not finalize an asset 
purchase agreement, one or more of the PSCs will be closed. Which locations are 
identified for possible closure? Please describe how patients will have continued access 
to PSC services in the areas covered by the PSCs to be closed.

5) Pages 18 and 19 of the application state that the termination of services at the seven PSCs 
will allow the Hospital to achieve efficiencies and allow the redeployment of resources. 
Please explain how these resources will be reallocated and expound upon the benefits of 
these efficiencies to the patients.

6) Page 19 of the application briefly describes a bi-directional data sharing interface 
implementation between the Hospital and Quest. Please explain in greater detail how the 
interface will benefit patients. Please describe the improvements in patient care 
experienced at other HHC facilities as a result of implementing the interface.

7) Pages 19-20 of the application refer to Hartford Healthcare Corporation’s (“HHC’s”) 
charity care policy. Please submit a copy of Quest’s policy on providing services to the 
uninsured, indigent, and underserved populations of the region. If Quest’s policy differs 
from HHC’s, please describe how it will be adjusted to ensure that financial assistance 
for the underserved and uninsured populations will continue at the same or improved 
levels.

8) Page 22 of the application notes that the proposal does not include any of the Hospital’s
actual laboratories or lab testing services. Describe the lab testing and/or blood drawing 
services that will continue to be owned and/or operated by the Hospital and their 
locations. 

9) Does Table 5 on page 36 of the application, Historical Utilization by Service, include 
actual data through March 31, 2017? Please update the table to reflect data through June
30, 2017.
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10) Page 20 of the application states “if this Proposal is approved, the services provided at the 
seven (7) Backus PSC locations will no longer be hospital-based locations and, thus, any 
facility fees will be eliminated.” Will Quest impose any additional fees upon patients that 
use their services? Will the cost to patients for blood drawing services increase or 
decrease as a result of this proposal?

11) Page 89 of the Application states PSCs require significant investment in billing, 
marketing, client services and logistics to help support the business and to facilitate a 
convenient and efficient experience for the business’ customers and clients. Please define 
and quantify these expenses.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact Kaila Riggott at (860) 418-7037.

Sincerely,

Brian A. Carney
Associate Research Analyst

Digitally signed by 
Brian Carney 
Date: 2017.07.07 
13:42:03 -04'00'
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Olejarz, Barbara

From: Durdy, Barbara <Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org>
Sent: Friday, July 07, 2017 2:05 PM
To: Carney, Brian; VCarannante@goodwin.com
Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Rival, Jessica; Olejarz, Barbara
Subject: RE: Completeness letter for Docket 17-32173-CON

Thank you Brian 
 

From: Carney, Brian [mailto:Brian.Carney@ct.gov]  
Sent: Friday, July 07, 2017 1:47 PM 
To: Durdy, Barbara; VCarannante@goodwin.com 
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
 

 
 

 
This e‐mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential and 
privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, or 
an employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e‐mail and 
destroy all copies of the original message, including any attachments.  
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User, OHCA

From: Carannante, Vincenzo <VCarannante@goodwin.com>
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2017 3:04 PM
To: User, OHCA; Riggott, Kaila
Cc: Carney, Brian
Subject: Backus Hospital Completeness Question Responses (DN - 32173)
Attachments: DN 17-32173-CON.PDF; Completeness Responses - Backus  Hospital (Lab 

Termination).DOCX

Importance: High

Hi Kaila and Brian:  Attached please find our completeness question responses.  
Thank you, Vin  
 

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

From: Riggott, Kaila
Sent: Tuesday, August 01, 2017 7:33 AM
To: Carannante, Vincenzo; User, OHCA
Cc: Carney, Brian
Subject: RE: Backus Hospital Completeness Question Responses (DN - 32173)

Thank you Vin. 
 
Kaila Riggott, MPA 
Planning Specialist 
State of Connecticut 
Department of Public Health 
Office of Health Care Access 
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13-HCA 
Hartford, CT 06134 
phone: 860.418.7037 
fax: 860.418.7053 
http://www/ct.gov/ohca 

 
 
 

From: Carannante, Vincenzo [mailto:VCarannante@goodwin.com]  
Sent: Monday, July 31, 2017 3:04 PM 
To: User, OHCA <OHCA@ct.gov>; Riggott, Kaila <Kaila.Riggott@ct.gov> 
Cc: Carney, Brian <Brian.Carney@ct.gov> 
Subject: Backus Hospital Completeness Question Responses (DN ‐ 32173) 
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

From: Rival, Jessica
Sent: Tuesday, August 15, 2017 4:18 PM
To: VCarannante@goodwin.com; Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org
Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Carney, Brian; Olejarz, Barbara
Subject: 17-32173-CON
Attachments: 32173-CON Notification of Application Deemed Complete.pdf

Good afternoon Ms. Durdy, 
     On August 15, 2017, OHCA deemed complete William W. Backus Hospital’s application seeking authorization to 
terminate seven Patient Service Centers; Docket Number: 17‐32173‐CON.  Attached you will find a PDF of your letter of 
notification.  Please confirm your receipt of this e‐mail at your earliest convenience. 
Thank you, 
 

Jessica Rival 
CCT Health Care Analyst 
Office of Health Care Access 
Connecticut Department of Public Health 
410 Capitol Avenue MS#13HCA 
Hartford, CT 06134 
Phone: 860‐418‐7035 
Fax:        860‐418‐7053 
http://www/ct.gov/ohca 
 

 
 



 
 

Phone: (860) 418-7001  Fax: (860) 418-7053  
410 Capitol Avenue, P.O. Box 340308 

Hartford, Connecticut  06134-0308 
www.ct.gov/dph 

Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer 
 

Office of Health Care Access 
 
 
August 15, 2017 

Via Email Only 
 

Barbara A. Durdy 
Director, Strategic Planning 
Hartford HealthCare 
181 Patricia M. Genova Blvd 
Newington, CT 06111 
Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org 
 
RE: Certificate of Need Application: Docket Number: 17-32173-CON 

Termination of Seven Patient Service Centers 
 

Dear Ms. Durdy: 
 
This letter is to inform you that, pursuant to Section 19a-639a (d) of the Connecticut General Statutes, 
the Office of Health Care Access has deemed the above-referenced application complete, as of August 
15, 2017. 
 
 
If you have any questions concerning this letter, please feel free to contact me at (860) 418-7035. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jessica Rival 
CCT-Health Care Analyst 
 
 
Cc: Vincenzo Carannante, Esq., Shipman & Goodwin LLP 

Digitally signed 
by Jessica Rival 
Date: 2017.08.15 
15:11:30 -04'00'



1

Olejarz, Barbara

From: Carannante, Vincenzo <VCarannante@goodwin.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 15, 2017 4:20 PM
To: Rival, Jessica; Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org
Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Carney, Brian; Olejarz, Barbara
Subject: RE: 17-32173-CON

Confirming receipt.  Thank you so much for the quick turnaround.  We really appreciate it! 
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
 

From: Rival, Jessica [mailto:Jessica.Rival@ct.gov]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 15, 2017 4:18 PM 
To: Carannante, Vincenzo <VCarannante@goodwin.com>; Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org 
Cc: Riggott, Kaila <Kaila.Riggott@ct.gov>; Carney, Brian <Brian.Carney@ct.gov>; Olejarz, Barbara 
<Barbara.Olejarz@ct.gov> 
Subject: 17‐32173‐CON 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, August 15, 2017 4:59 PM
To: Rival, Jessica; VCarannante@goodwin.com
Cc: Riggott, Kaila; Carney, Brian; Olejarz, Barbara
Subject: RE: 17-32173-CON

Thank you Jessica 
 

From: Rival, Jessica [mailto:Jessica.Rival@ct.gov]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 15, 2017 4:18 PM 
To: VCarannante@goodwin.com; Durdy, Barbara 
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
 

 
 

 
 
Reminder: This e-mail and any attachments are subject to the current HHC email retention policies. Please 
save or store appropriately in accordance with policy.  
 
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

Certificate of Need 
Final Decision 

 
Applicant: The William W. Backus Hospital 
 326 Washington Street 
 Norwich, CT 06360 

 
Docket Number: 17-32173-CON  
 
Project Title: Termination of Seven Blood Collection Facilities 
 
Project Description: The William W. Backus Hospital (“Backus” or “Applicant”), seeks 
authorization to terminate its provision of services at seven Blood Collection Facilities 
whereupon Quest Diagnostics will assume ownership and operation. 
 
Procedural History: The Applicant published notice of its intent to file a Certificate of Need 
(“CON”) application in The Hartford Courant (Hartford) on May 31, 2017, June 1, 2017 and 
June 2, 2017. On, June 22, 2017, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA”) received the CON 
application from the Applicant for the above-referenced project and deemed the application 
complete on August 15, 2017. OHCA received no responses from the public concerning the 
proposal and no hearing requests were received from the public per Connecticut General Statutes 
(“Conn. Gen. Stat.”) § 19a-639a(e). Deputy Commissioner Addo considered the entire record in 
this matter. 
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Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 
 

1. The Applicant is an acute care hospital and member of Hartford HealthCare Corporation 
(“Hartford HealthCare”) with its main campus located at 326 Washington Street, Norwich. 
Ex. A, p. 21 

 
2. The Applicant offers, among other services, laboratory testing and outpatient specimen 

collection at its main campus. It currently also performs blood drawing and specimen 
collection services at seven satellite patient outreach centers, also known as blood 
collection facilities, (“BCFs”) in Eastern CT. Blood and other bodily fluid samples are 
collected at the BCFs and transferred to Backus-owned laboratories for testing. Ex. A, p. 21 

 
3. Due to the costs of running its outreach operation, including billing, marketing, client 

services and logistics, the Applicant determined a provider focused solely on sample 
collection and testing could more efficiently provide BCF services. Ex. A p. 21, 89 

 
4. The Applicant estimates that the expense related to supporting and operating the BCFs 

identified in this application are as follows: 
 Billing / Patient accounts - $130,950 (per year) 
 Courier Services - $180,000 ($15,000 x 12 months) 
 Marketing Expenses - $1,000 (approximately per year)    
 Total Estimated Expenses listed above for BCFs = approximately $312,000 (per 

year)   
     Ex. A, pp. 89, 96 

 
5. The Applicant is seeking authorization to terminate its ownership and operation of all seven 

of its satellite BCFs at the following locations:   
 163 Broadway, Colchester  
 111 Salem Turnpike, Norwich  
 55 Town Street Norwich  
 330 Washington Street Norwich  
 80 Norwich New London Turnpike. Uncasville,  
 70 Main Street, Jewett City  
 582 Norwich Road Plainfield  

       Ex. A, pp. 14, 22, 26  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The William W. Backus Hospital  Page 3 of 10 
Docket Number: 17-32173-CON 
 

 

6. Historical utilization volumes are shown in the table below:  
 

HISTORICAL UTILIZATION BY SERVICE 

Lab Outreach Service 
Locations 

Patient Visits 

(Last 3 Completed FYs) 

CFY Volume 

June FY17 
YTD  

CFY Volume June 
FY17 YTD 

Annualized 

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 20171 FY 2017 

163  Broadway, 
Colchester 

7,390 7,474 7,566 5,421 7,228 

111  Salem Turnpike, 
Norwich 

28,339 28,647 30,674 21,670 28,893 

55  Town St. Norwich 18,614 18,570 18,928 13,876 18,501 

330 Washington St. 
Norwich 

12,072 16,047 16,630 12,854 17,139 

80  Norwich New London 
Tpk. Uncasville 

4,704 4,969 4,630 3,434 4,579 

70  Main St., Jewett City 3,743 3,138 3,538 2,234 2,979 

582 Norwich Rd. 
Plainfield 

12,210 12,495 13,939 10,929 14,572 

Total 87,072 91,340 95,905 70,418 93,891 
1 Volume represents actual visits from October 1, 2016 through June 31, 2017 (9 months)   

Ex. A, p. 29 
 

7. The termination of services at the seven BCFs will not impact its own laboratory or 
laboratory testing services, and will continue to perform drawings for outpatients, 
Emergency Department (“ED”) patients and for scheduled surgical services. The following 
lab testing and/or blood draw services will continue to be owned/operated by the Applicant: 

 Backus Hospital Laboratory (full-service lab testing facility) – 326 Washington St, 
Norwich; 

 Backus Plainfield Emergency Care Center Laboratory (rapid response lab testing 
facility) - 582 Norwich Road, Plainfield;  

 Backus Hospital (inpatient and outpatient phlebotomy services) - 326 Washington 
St, Norwich.  

Ex. A, pp. 22, 95 
 

8. The Applicant and Hartford Healthcare, in conjunction with an independent third party, 
issued a request for proposals to identify a purchaser for the seven BCFs that are the 
subject of this proposal, as well as those of other Hartford Healthcare owned hospitals. It 
sought a purchaser that is an expert in laboratory sciences and capable of handling the large 
volume of testing required by the Applicant and Hartford Healthcare as a whole. Docket 17-
32170-CON Ex. BB, Transcript Dr., Bimel Patel, Senior Vice President, Hartford Healthcare, pp 38-39 

9. The Applicant identified Quest Diagnostics (“Quest”) as its preferred purchaser. Quest is a 
publicly traded company headquartered in Madison, NJ that operates more than 2,200 
BCFs nationwide, with at least 187 in Connecticut. Ex. A, pp. 21, 25.  Quest Diagnostics, Fact 
Sheet available at available at http://newsroom.questdiagnostics.com/index.php?s=30664 (last accessed May 
2017); DPH, BCF Licensing and Inspection Records.   
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10. There will be no change to the services offered at the BCFs subsequent to implementation 

of the proposal. The same services will be provided in the same locations by Quest. Docket 
17-32170-CON Ex. S, Pre-filed Testimony, Joseph Vaccarelli, Administrative Director, HoCC, p. 6 
 

11. Following implementation of the proposal, patients visiting one of the seven BCFs will 
have blood or urine samples collected by Quest and transported to a Quest-owned 
laboratory for testing. Results will be entered into an electronic health records (“EHR”) 
system and be immediately accessible by Backus physicians. Docket 17-32170-CON Ex. S, Pre-
file Testimony, Kabawat, p. 3-4. Ex. BB, Testimony, Dr. Spencer Erman, Chief Medical Informatics Officer 
for Hartford HealthCare, p. 51. 
 

12. Quest maintains an electronic mobile application titled “My Quest,” providing consumers 
with the ability to view their test results online, schedule appointments any time of the day 
and track their healthcare over time. Ex. A, p. 19 
 

13. As a result of the planned conversion to the EPIC EHR system in October 2017, the 
Applicant and Quest will coordinate patients’ requisitions and results using a bi-directional 
data sharing interface. This software is currently in place at other Hartford Healthcare 
Corporation facilities. Ex. A, pp. 19, 94 
 

14. Hartford HealthCare has implemented quarterly Steering Committee meetings, during 
which the Applicant’s pathologists may directly communicate to Quest’s medical 
leadership any concerns or insights that may arise regarding Quest’s operation of the BCFs. 
Docket 17-32170-CON Ex. BB, Transcript, Patel, p. 49  
 

15. In addition to the seven BCFs that are the subject of this proposal, Quest has nine BCFs in 
Backus’ primary service area (“PSA”). Physicians have the ability to electronically submit 
requisition orders to Quest, which may then be accessed and completed by any Quest BCF 
at which the patient presents. Docket 17- 32170-CON Ex. BB, Transcript, Kabawat, p. 58.  
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16. There are twelve existing BCFs located in the Applicant’s primary service area (“PSA”) as 
shown in the table below. 
 

EXISTING BCFS IN BACKUS’ PSA 

Provider Name Address 

Quest 

 
118 New London Turnpike, Norwich 
85 Poheganut Drive, Groton 
721 Bank Street, New London 
4 Shaws Cove, New London 
23 Clara Drive #204, Mystic  
15 Chesterfield Road, East Lyme 
5 Founders Street, Willimantic  
21 Liberty Drive 2A, Hebron 
3-5 E Hampton Road, Marlborough 
 

Lab Corp. 
 
12 Case Street #302, Norwich 
 

Yale New Haven 
Health – 
Wood River 
Health Services 

 
823 Main Street, Hope Valley, RI 

 

    Ex. A, pp. 33, 93 
 

17. The purchase price of Hartford HealthCare’s BCF services, of which Backus’ BCFs are a 
part, is $30 million. Ex. A, p. 93 

 
18. Despite the incremental gain in FY 2017, which is largely due to including the proceeds 

from the sale of the BCF business units as other operating income, the proposal projects 
incremental yearly losses of approximately $7M in FY 2018, FY 2019 and FY 2020.  

 
PROJECTED INCREMENTAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 

Revenue from Operations $15,000,000 ($10,896,565) ($11,005,531) ($11,115,586) 

Total Operating Expenses $240,286 ($3,745,024) ($3,789,324) ($3,834,204) 

Gain/Loss from Operations $14,759,714 ($7,151,541) ($7,216,207) ($7,281,382) 

  Ex. A, pp. 22, 28 
 

19. Despite the incremental losses related to the proposal, the Applicant will still achieve 
overall gains.  
 

PROJECTED OVERALL GAINS WITH CON 
 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 

Revenue From Operations $322,917,676 $300,479,579 $303,479,464 $306,509,324 

Total Operating Expenses $277,033,908 $276,897,322 $279,909,838 $282,970,130 

Gain (Loss) From Operations $45,883,768 $23,582,257 $23,569,626 $23,539,194 

 Financial Worksheet A 
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20. Quest has a charity care policy in place that qualifies patients for discounts based on their 
income compared to federal poverty level guidelines and patients may submit an 
application for billing relief. Quest provides no-charge Noninvasive Prenatal Screening for 
patients who meet or fall below the federal poverty level and an out-of-pocket maximum 
charge of $200 for those with incomes between 100% and 400%. Ex. A, p. 94.  Quest 
Diagnostics, Financial Assistance, www.questdiagnostics.com/home/about/corporate-citizenship/community-
giving/assistance.html (last accessed Aug. 2017). 
http://www.questdiagnostics.com/dms/Documents/Insurance-Lists/connecticut.pdf (last accessed Aug. 2017). 
 

21. Medicaid payers currently comprise 16.5% of the Applicant’s patients.  

 
APPLICANT’S LAST COMPLETED PAYER MIX 

Payer 
FY 2016 

Visits % 

Medicare* 37,043 38.6 

Medicaid* 15,809 16.5 

CHAMPUS & TriCare 1,300 1.4 

Total Government 54,152 56.5 

Commercial Insurers 40,732 42.5 

Uninsured 679 0.7 

Workers Compensation 342 0.4 

Total Non-Government 4,1735 43.5 

Total Payer Mix 95,905 100.0 
     *Includes managed care activity 
     Ex. A, p.30 

22. Quest is enrolled in and a participating service provider in Connecticut’s Medicaid program 
and there is no expected change in the payer mix. Ex. A, p. 94.  

http://www.questdiagnostics.com/dms/Documents/Insurance-Lists/connecticut.pdf (last accessed Aug. 2017). 

23. OHCA is currently in the process of establishing its policies and standards as regulations. 
Therefore, OHCA has not made any findings as to this proposal’s relationship to any 
regulations not yet adopted by OHCA. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(1))  

 
24. The Statewide Health Care Facilities and Service Plan does not address BCFs and, as such, 

there is currently no relationship between them. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(2)) (Ex. A p. 24) 
 

25. The Applicant has not proposed a health care facility or service for which a demonstration 
of clear public need is applicable. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(3)) (Ex. A pp. 24-25) 

 
26. The Applicant has demonstrated that the proposal is financially feasible. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 

19a-639(a)(4)) (Ex. A pp. 28-29) 
 

27. The Applicant has demonstrated that the proposal will maintain quality and accessibility 
and cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the region. (Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 19a-639(a)(5)) 
(Ex. A pp. 25-26) 
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28. The Applicant has shown that there would be no change in the provision of health care 
services to the relevant populations and payer mix, including access to services by 
Medicaid recipients. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(6)) (Ex. A pp. 26-27) 

 
29. The Applicant has satisfactorily identified the population to be affected by this proposal. 

(Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(7)) (Ex. A pp. 30-31) 
 

30. The Applicant’s historical provision of treatment in the service area supports this proposal. 
(Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(8)) (Ex. A pp. 30-31) 

 
31. The Applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that the proposal would not result in an 

unnecessary duplication of existing services in the area. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(9)) (Ex. A 
p. 31) 

 
32. The Applicant has demonstrated that there will be no reduction in access to services by 

Medicaid recipients or indigent persons. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-639(a)(10)) (Ex. A pp. 26-27) 
 

33. The Applicant has not demonstrated that the proposal will not negatively impact the 
diversity of health care providers, but patient choice will still exist in the region. (Conn. Gen. 
Stat. § 19a-639(a)(11)) (Ex. A p. 31) 

 
34. The Applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that the proposal will not result in any 

consolidation that would affect health care costs or access to care. (Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-
639(a)(12)) (Ex. A pp, 25-27) 
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Discussion 
 
CON applications are decided on a case by case basis and do not lend themselves to general 
applicability due to the uniqueness of the facts in each case. In rendering its decision, OHCA 
considers the factors set forth in § 19a-639(a) of the Statutes. The Applicants bear the burden of 
proof in this matter by a preponderance of the evidence. Jones v. Connecticut Medical 
Examining Board, 309 Conn. 727 (2013). 
 
The Applicant, a member of Hartford HealthCare, is an acute care hospital with its primary 
campus in Norwich. Among other services, the Applicant provides laboratory testing and 
outpatient specimen collection at this location. It additionally performs blood drawing and 
specimen collection services at seven (7) satellite patient outreach centers, also known as blood 
collection facilities (“BCFs”), in Eastern Connecticut. FF1-FF2.  
 
Due to the cost of operating the BCFs, including billing, marketing, and client services and 
logistics, the Applicant determined a provider focused solely on sample collection and testing 
could more efficiently provide BCF services. As a result, the Applicant is proposing terminating 
its ownership and operation of all seven BCFs. FF3-FF5, FF 7.   
 
The Applicant sought a purchaser for the BCFs with an expertise in laboratory sciences that 
would also be capable of handling the large volume of testing required by the Applicant and 
Hartford HealthCare as a whole. Through a request for proposals process, and with assistance 
from an independent third party, the Applicant identified Quest as its preferred purchaser for $30 
million.1 Quest is a publicly traded company headquartered in Madison, NJ that operates more 
than 2,200 BCFs nationwide, at least 187 of which are located throughout Connecticut. FF8-FF9,   
 
Conn. Gen. Stat. sec. 19a-638(a)(5) requires that a hospital terminating outpatient services obtain 
a CON.  It is the Applicant’s proposed termination of its BCFs that trigger the provision and 
CON review. The Applicant has stated that the proposal will not impact, affect, limit, reduce 
and/or terminate any of the laboratory testing services offered and/or provided by Backus to its 
patients. FF5, FF7 
 
In addition to the seven BCFs that are the subject of this proposal, Quest also owns and operates 
nine other BCFs in the Applicant’s primary service area. Physicians can electronically submit 
requisition orders to Quest’s electronic medical records system, which can be accessed and 
completed by any Quest BCF at which a patient presents. Similarly, patients of the Applicant 
with limited transportation options may have access to more conveniently located BCF options 
that are electronically connected to Backus’ physicians. For the above reasons, access will be 
maintained and potentially improved for patients. FF12-FF13, FF15-FF16,  
 
The BCFs will continue to be subject to the same Department of Public Health quality review2 
under Quest’s ownership as they have been under the Applicant’s. Dr. Kabawat confirmed that 
all of Quest’s BCFs are inspected by DPH.3 Hartford HealthCare has also implemented quarterly 
Steering Committee meetings, during which the Applicant’s pathologists may directly 

                                                           
1 Price includes Quest’s purchase of additional Hartford HealthCare-owned BCFs. 
2 See CONN. AGENCIES REGS. §§ 19a-36A-47 through 36A-49.  
3 Docket 17- 32170-CON Ex. BB, Transcript, Kabawat, p. 43.  
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communicate to Quest’s medical leadership any concerns or insights that may arise regarding 
Quest’s operation of the BCFs. FF14 Consequently, OHCA expects that the quality of blood 
drawing and specimen collection at the BCFs will be maintained. 
 
The diversity of providers in the area will, however, be impacted. There are currently twelve 
BCFs in the Applicant’s service area, nine of which are Quest owned. Lab Corporation in 
Norwich owns one; and Yale New Haven Health’s Wood River Health Services owns one. The 
Applicant terminating its ownership of the seven BCFs will inevitably reduce the diversity of 
providers in the area. However, there are at least two other locations that are owned by entities 
other than Quest in the primary service area. FF16 
 
Medicaid payers currently comprise 16.5% of the Applicant’s patients. Quest is enrolled in and a 
participating service provider in Connecticut’s Medicaid program, and there is no expected 
change to the payer mix. FF21-FF22 
 
Quest has a charity care policy in place that qualifies patients for discounts based on their income 
compared to federal poverty level guidelines and patients may submit an application for billing 
relief. Therefore, there will be no reduction in services to Medicaid recipients or indigent 
persons. FF20 
 
Furthermore, the Applicant has satisfactorily identified the patient population it serves and 
shown there is unlikely to be any impact upon it as a result of the proposal. Since there are no 
new BCFs or services being proposed, the utilization of existing facilities in the area will not be 
affected and there will be no duplication of services. The Applicant will incur no cost or 
expenditure and has shown it is financially feasible. FF6, FF10, FF21-FF22  

Although the diversity of providers in the area is inevitably negatively impacted by a 
termination, this proposal will maintain access to all payers with no anticipated impact on the 
cost to consumers, including those who are indigent or covered by Medicaid. FF20-FF22 
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Order 
 

Based upon the foregoing Findings and Discussion, the Certificate of Need application 
requesting authorization to terminate the seven (7) Blood Collection Facilities requested is 
hereby APPROVED. 
 
All of the foregoing constitutes the final order of the Office of Health Care Access in this matter. 
 
 
       By Order of the 
       Department of Public Health 
       Office of Health Care Access 
 
 
 
_________________________   _____________________________ 
Date       Yvonne T. Addo, MBA 

Deputy Commissioner 
 
 
 

9/28/2017
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Olejarz, Barbara

From: Microsoft Outlook
To: Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org; VCarannante@goodwin.com
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 9:10 AM
Subject: Relayed: Final Decision

Delivery to these recipients or groups is complete, but no delivery notification was sent by the 
destination server: 
 
Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org (Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org) 
 
VCarannante@goodwin.com (VCarannante@goodwin.com) 
 
Subject: Final Decision 
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Olejarz, Barbara

From: Carannante, Vincenzo <VCarannante@goodwin.com>
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 9:15 AM
To: Olejarz, Barbara
Subject: RE: Final Decision

Thank you so much! Vin  
 

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
 

From: Olejarz, Barbara [mailto:Barbara.Olejarz@ct.gov]  
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 9:10 AM 
To: Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org; Carannante, Vincenzo <VCarannante@goodwin.com> 
Subject: Final Decision 
 

9/28/17 
 
Barbara Durdy and Vincenzo Carannante, 
 
Please see attached final decision for  the William W. Backus Hospital for the termination of seven blood 
collection facilities under Docket Number 17-32173-CON 
 
 
Barbara K. Olejarz 
Administrative Assistant to Kimberly Martone 
Office of Health Care Access 
Department of Public Health 
Phone: (860) 418‐7005 
Email: Barbara.Olejarz@ct.gov 
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Olejarz, Barbara

From: Durdy, Barbara <Barbara.Durdy@hhchealth.org>
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 9:13 AM
To: Olejarz, Barbara; VCarannante@goodwin.com
Subject: RE: Final Decision

Thank you Barbara 
 

From: Olejarz, Barbara [mailto:Barbara.Olejarz@ct.gov]  
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
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